
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Local Plan Leadership Group 
Remote Meeting 

 
 
Date: Tuesday, 23rd March, 2021 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: Zoom - https://zoom.us/ 

 
Chair: Councillor G Bagnall 
Members: Councillors M Caton, R Freeman, P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, 

S Merifield, R Pavitt (Vice-Chair), N Reeve, M Sutton and M Tayler 
 
  
 
Public Participation 

 

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity for up to 10 members of 

thepublic to ask questions and make statements subject to having given notice by 

2pmthe working day before the meeting. Each speaker will have 4 minutes to make 

theirstatement. Please write to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk to register your 

intention to speak with Democratic Services. 

 

Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out 

theirquestions or statement at the meeting, or to attend the meeting over Zoom to 

readout their questions or statement themselves 

 

Members of the public who would like to watch the meeting live can do so here. The 

broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=510&MId=5674&Ver=4


AGENDA 
PART 1 

 
Open to Public and Press 

 
 
1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 To receive any apologies and declarations of interest. 
 

 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

4 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meetings. 
 

 

3 Feedback Consultation on Theme 4 - Transport 
 

9 - 17 

 To consider feedback on the First Consultation (Issues and Options) 
Theme 4: Transport. 
 

 

 



REMOTE MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
Due to the Government’s social distancing measures imposed in the wake of Covid-
19, the way in which the public can participate in Uttlesford District Council meetings 
has changed. Meetings are no longer being held on site or in person and ‘remote 
meetings’ will be held on the virtual meeting platform Zoom until further notice. 
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s 
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be 
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage. 
 
Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at meetings of the Local Plan Leadership Group. A 
maximum of 10 speaking slots are available on a first come, first served basis. You 
will need to register your intention to speak with the Democratic Services Officer by 
2pm the working day before the meeting. Please register your intention to speak by 
writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk. 
 
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510. 
 
Facilities for people with disabilities  
 
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510 
369/410/467/548 as soon as possible prior to the meeting. 
 

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services 

Telephone: 01799 510369, 510548, 510410 or 510467 

Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

 

General Enquiries 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER 

Telephone: 01799 510510 
Fax: 01799 510550 

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk 
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

 

mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


 

 
 

LOCAL PLAN LEADERSHIP GROUP held at ZOOM - HTTPS://ZOOM.US/, on 
MONDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2021 at 7.00 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor G Bagnall (Chair) 
 
 
Guest (non-
voting): 

Councillors M Caton, R Freeman, P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, 
S Merifield, N Reeve, M Sutton and M Tayler 
 
Councillor J Evans 

 
Officers in 
attendance: 

G Glenday (Assistant Director - Planning), S Miles (Local Plans 
and New Communities Manager) E Moon (Principal Urban 
Designer) and C Shanley-Grozavu (Democratic Services Officer) 

 
1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Apologies for absence were received by Councillor Pavitt. 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

2    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting on 8th February 2021 be 
agreed as an accurate record. 

 
3    THE NON-STRATEGIC POLICIES IN THE WITHDRAWN LOCAL PLAN  

 
The Local Plan and New Communities Manager presented a report the non-
strategic policies in the withdrawn Local Plan.  They explained that the 
withdrawn Local Plan had a number of non-strategic policies where there may be 
scope for reusing elements of these policies and the chair of LPLG had 
requested that the group consider these. 
 
Members were reminded to keep an open mind as the first consultation on the 
Local Plan was ongoing and no decisions would be made on policies until the 
deadline for representations had passed.  
 
The group discussed the non-strategic policies in the withdrawn local plan and 
fed back on the content and policy gaps. The following was noted: 

 Officers confirmed that all policies would be reviewed in line with a 
refreshed evidence base and they agreed to bring a schedule to an 
upcoming meeting which would demonstrate how they anticipate they will 
refresh the evidence base since the last local plan two years ago. 

 Members indicated that they would welcome updated housing policies, 
including encouraging the construction and protection of more bungalows, 
the removal of permitted development rights if it is in the community’s 
interest and regulating HMOs.  

 Members debated the need to incorporate Essex County Council 
standards, such as on garden and parking sizes, into the plan as they felt 
that some guidance did not work effectively in practice. Officers 
highlighted that some standards are nationally prescribed so must be 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

considered, and that the government were currently consulting on new 
design codes. It was agreed that the group would review current guidance 
to agree whether it is appropriate for inclusion in the new local plan.  

 Members suggested asking for input from third tiers at the early stages of 
non-strategic policy development.  

 Officers clarified that local housing need is calculated using a standard 
methodology by Planning Policy Guidance and National Planning Policy 
Framework. Whilst they act as a guide, officers would have to provide 
exceptional reasons, should they use an alternative methodology which 
provides a lower requirement.  

 
During discussion, the group highlighted the importance of collaborative working 
between members and officers in order to create achievable policies. It was 
agreed that members would contact the Local Plan and New Communities 
Manager with their preferred policy areas in order to work with officers on 
developing policy once the consultation had closed. It was noted that the draft 
policies in the new local plan would go out for consultation in Spring 2022. 
 
The Chair also requested that members who did not have a paper copy of the 
previously withdrawn local plan should contact the Local Plan and New 
Communities Manager who would arrange for one to be distributed to them.  
 
Councillor Sutton arrived at 19:06 
 
 

4    FEEDBACK ON CONSULTATION ON THEME 2: CHARACTER AND 
HERITAGE  
 
The Principal Urban Designer presented a report on the comments received on 
the second consultation theme.  
 
The second theme was on the topic of “Character and Heritage” and was 
discussed by the Community Stakeholder Forum on 25 November. Following the 
Forum, the theme was open for public consultation and in the first four weeks, 27 
responses had been received.  
 
Members discussed the findings of the ongoing consultation and the following 
was noted: 

 There was a preference for putting housing near stations to reduce the 
use of the car. Members recognised the challenges that some residents 
have in accessing public transport but noted changing infrastructure 
needs, with the possibility of broadband becoming more important than 
public transport in the future.  

 Members acknowledged the need for extending the public footpath 
network to better connectivity between villages. Whilst policies may be put 
on place to promote this, it was important for the Council to ensure these 
are put into practice, especially when assessing planning applications.  

 Policies needed to reflect that different travel patterns and scenario are 
developing due to changing work patterns and technologies. An example 
of this was the decline in residents commuting to London and the rise of 
individuals working from home.  

Page 5



 

 
 

 Higher compact density housing was not necessarily a bad thing, and if 
done correctly, creates thriving communities.  

 There was a need to develop age appropriate housing, based on the 
needs of the populations rather than the wants of the developer. 

 Consultation responses indicated that there was support for minimum 
environmental standards with an expectation that these would be 
exceeded. Officers clarified that it would be difficult to implement 
standards which exceed the government’s building regulations, but they 
can create an aspiration which they then encourage developers to 
achieve.  

 
The meeting ended at 20:22 

 
 

Page 6



 

 
 

LOCAL PLAN LEADERSHIP GROUP held at ZOOM - HTTPS://ZOOM.US/, on 
WEDNESDAY, 3 MARCH 2021 at 7.00 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor G Bagnall (Chair) 
 
 
Guest (non-
voting): 

Councillors M Caton, R Freeman, P Lees, B Light, S Merifield, 
R Pavitt, N Reeve and M Tayler 
 
Councillors J Evans and L Pepper 

 
Officers in 
attendance: 

A Emanuel (Principal Urban Designer), G Glenday (Assistant 
Director - Planning), S Miles (Local Plans and New Communities 
Manager) and C Shanley-Grozavu (Democratic Services Officer) 

 
 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sutton.  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Lees.  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
The committee congratulated Councillor Reeve on the successfully securing 4 
students from Cambridge University to carry out a project which will look at what 
the green economy means to Uttlesford. 
 

2    THEME 3: CLIMATE CHANGE  
 
The Principal Urban Designer presented a report on the comments received on 
the third consultation theme.  
 
The third theme was on the topic of “Climate Change” and was discussed by the 
Community Stakeholder Forum on 9 December. Following the Forum, the theme 
was open for public consultation, and in the first four weeks, 31 responses had 
been received.  
 
Members discussed the findings of the ongoing consultation and the following 
was noted: 

 Members debated the value of the representations which had been 
received and considered that it was their role to think strategically and 
utilise all representations received to do so. 

 Land use was identified as a key theme. Members acknowledged that 
Uttlesford had the largest area of agricultural land in Essex and they 
discussed the need for farming practices to be carried out with minimum 
environmental impact. It was noted the importance of working 
collaboratively with farmers in developing policies in order to understand 
the changes and challenges within the agricultural industry.  

 It was debated that the Council’s parking standards contradicted efforts to 
encourage less vehicular use as parking provisions were required in every 
new development. Some members argued that it was necessary for new 

Public Document Pack

Page 7



 

 
 

residential developments to offer parking due to Uttlesford being a 
primarily rural district with restricted access to public transport. 

 Should the new local plan seek to develop more sustainable energy 
infrastructure, such as solar farms, there would need to be careful 
consideration in ensuring minimal impact upon the countryside and 
alternative solutions must be looked at.  

 

During discussion, Councillor Pepper highlighted the new Interim Climate 
Change Planning Policy and its role in helping to tackle climate change. She 
agreed to forward her thoughts about the five key priority themes in tackling 
climate change to members.  

Councillor Freeman also agreed to circulate a BBC Radio 4 article about the 
carbon footprint of food supply to the group.  

Officers highlighted that the process is finding a balance by working strategically 
with organisations such as the Essex Climate Change Commission and locally 
with residents through the consultation.  

 
Councillor Pavitt arrived at 19:41  
 
Councillor Light left the meeting at 19:30 and Councillor Lees left the meeting at 
19:44 
 
The meeting closed at 20:21 
 
 

Page 8



Committee: Local Plan Leadership Group Date: 

23 March 2021 
Title: Feedback Consultation on Theme 4 – 

Transport  

Report 
Author 

Ben Kennedy, Principal Transportation & 
Infrastructure Planner 

Ben.Kennedy@essex.gov.uk  

 

 
Summary 
 

1. This report feeds back on the First Consultation (Issues and Options) Theme 
4: Transport.  

Recommendations 
 

2. That members note: 

a. the consultation responses and the Forum’s views 

b. potential actions to address issues 

c. that no final recommendations will be made until all comments have 
been considered (consultation ends 21 April 2021) 

3. That members, if desired, provide any feedback e.g. for officers to consider 
when making final recommendations, for Forum members’ reference.  

Financial Implications 
 

4. None at this stage. 
 
Background Papers 

 
5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 

report and are available for inspection from the author of the report. 
 

Impact  
 

6.  None  

Communication/Consultation Consultation is ongoing  

Community Safety n/a 

Equalities Forthcoming policies will be subject to an 
Equalities and Healthy Impact Assessment 
(EqHIA) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

mailto:Ben.Kennedy@essex.gov.uk


Health and Safety n/a 

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications 

n/a 

Sustainability Forthcoming policies will need to meet the 
sustainability objectives of the Council and 
the Local Plan will be subject to a 
Sustainability Appraisal.  

Ward-specific impacts All 

Workforce/Workplace n/a 

 
Situation 
 

7. In preparation to the formal consultation on a draft Local Plan the Council is 
consulting on a series of 9 themes. The starting point for the consultation on 
each theme is the Community Stakeholder Forum whose purpose is to inform, 
start a discussion and generate comment.  

8. The fourth theme was on the topic of Transport was discussed by the 
Community Stakeholder Forum on 13 January 2021. Andrew Summers the 
Strategic Director of Transport East, the Sub-National Transport Body for the 
East of England Region, delivered a presentation to the Forum and then points 
raised in the presentation were discussed. Andrew Summer’s presentation and 
a video of the Forum meeting are available on the new Local Plan website. 

9. Following the Forum’s meeting, the theme was open for public consultation 
asking the general question ‘What options for sustainable transport in 
Uttlesford would you support?’. People are invited to make comments up to 
the close of the whole consultation on all the themes on 21 April. Comments 
received within the first four weeks are summarised in Appendix 1 and were 
presented back to the Forum for comment on the 24 February and to this 
working group on 23 March.  

Summary of consultation responses 

10. Between 13 January and 10 February 2021, 20 people and representatives of 
organisations responded to the theme.  

11. Appendix 1 is a summary of these comments.  Common themes are shown on 
the infographic adapted from the consultation document.  This is followed by a 
more detailed summary of the comments.   

Community Stakeholder Forum response 

12. Appendix 1 was discussed by the Community Stakeholder Forum on 24 
February 2021. The Forum members agreed with most of the feedback from 

Page 10

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/Consultation-and-the-Community-Stakeholder-Forum#Theme-4


the consultation to date and there was little of surprise and limited comment on 
the responses to date.  

Officer comments 

13. The responses in the consultation to date reveal that there is clear support 
from stakeholders to ensure that any new development in the district should be 
located and designed to maximise sustainable transport.  

14. Policies in the draft Local Plan will need to ensure that new development is 
located in areas with good accessibility to public transport and local services 
by foot or cycle. If new settlements are built in less accessible locations, then 
they must be of a scale and size where they can support their own amenities 
and do not necessitate external trips to access services.  

15. There was strong support for the principles of designing new neighbourhoods 
to prioritise pedestrians and cyclists over cars whilst recognising that the car 
will remain the main mode of transport and must be accommodated.  

16. Respondents felt that the current bus network in the district was not adequate 
and needs significant improvement to encourage people out of their cars. 
There was a very strong feeling that policies should ensure that developers 
adequately fund bus services to new developments and contribute to the 
ongoing operation of services.  

17. There was some scepticism about the role of autonomous vehicles and new 
technologies such as drones however there was universal support for ensuring 
that new homes have excellent broadband and 5G connectivity. There was 
strong support for ensuring that developers provide electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure in both private and public locations throughout the development 
and fund any necessary upgrades to the electrical grid network.  

What happens next 

18. The consultation on this theme remains open until 21 April 2021. Officers and 
the Forum will consider any feedback made by members at this meeting. Final 
recommendations, considering all comments on all themes will be prepared 
after the close of consultation in April. The Council will use the comments to 
determine its vision, strategy, policies and prepare the draft Local Plan. 

Risk Analysis 
 

19. Refer to the table below.  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

Insufficient regard 
is given to the 
comments 
received on the 
consultation 

1 Little 3: Could lead 
to unsound 
plan. 

Members and officers 
to carefully consider 
results of consultation, 
and clearly explain 
reasons for decisions 

Page 11



made.   

 
1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 

 

Page 12



  

 
 

   
 

Uttlesford Local Plan (Issues and Options) 2020-2021 

First Consultation: Theme 4 Transport January 2021 

 

Introduction 

The Community Stakeholder Forum discussed the theme on Wednesday 13 January and 

the theme was then open for comment. 

Comments received by Wednesday 10 February are summarised below and common 

themes are shown in the diagram.   

These comments will be presented back to the Community Stakeholder Forum on 24 

February and Local Plan Leadership Group on 3 March.  

Comments received after 10 February up to the close of consultation on 21 April 2021 will be 

brought together in a document summarising comments from all nine themes, the Council’s 

response and how the issues raised in the comments will be reflected in the Draft Local 

Plan. 

Between 13 January and 10 February 2021, twenty people and representatives of 

organisations responded to the theme.  

 

What we have been told so far 

The following is a summary of what people said about options for sustainable transport.   

 

To read all the representations in full please go to the Consultation Portal.  

 

Page 13

https://uttlesford-consult.objective.co.uk/kse/event/35960/peoplesubmissions/section/?consultation=ID-5772162-QUESTION-T-1


   
 

   
 

 

 

 

P
age 14



   
 

   
 

Transport: What options for sustainable transport would you support 

Access to Services 

Would you support a policy that makes planning consent easier for new and existing 

communities to benefit from commercially viable local services? 

 General support for the principle of locating new development where there is good 

access to services and sustainable transport. 

 Support for directing new development towards locations that enable residents to 

adopt sustainable modes of travel and have easy access to local shops, schools and 

facilities. 

 Suggestion that existing towns and larger settlements with greater range of services 

should be the preferred location for new development. 

 Entirely new settlements should only be supported where they are large enough to 

provide their own facilities and services. 

 New developments can help support the economic vitality of existing local services. 

 Developments located near to sustainable transport hubs will have less reliance on 

cars and in turn may need less provision for car parking on site. 

 Development sites should be selected based on their accessibility to rail services and 

stations. 

 

Low traffic Neighbourhoods 

Should neighbourhoods be designed where walking, cycling and public transport take priority 

over cars, and if so how? 

 Overall support for the concept of low traffic neighbourhood principles and designing 
new developments so that walking, cycling and public transport is prioritised over 
cars.  

 Retrofitting the principles to existing neighbourhoods will be difficult however.  

 Recognition that in rural areas the car will remain essential and be the dominant 
mode of travel.  

 Concerns about conflict between pedestrians and cyclists on shared paths were 
raised.  

 Suggestion that new pedestrian and cycle paths should be accessible to horse riders 
by default. 

 Concerns raised about the safety of cycling in rural areas and physical ability of older 
persons to cycle longer distances between settlements.  

 Concerns about the lack of safe walking routes and footpaths in rural areas but also 
in settlements such as Saffron Waldon which results in a greater reliance on the car.  

 Need to ensure new developments are permeable and that developers actually build 
the footpaths and cycle lanes required as part of the planning permission.  

 Concern that piecemeal developments are designed in isolation resulting in no 
improvements for walking and cycling.  

Page 15



   
 

   
 

 Suggestion that remote parking is unlikely to be popular however support expressed 
for car sharing. 

 Through traffic should be removed where possible however in reality many rural 
communities are centred on through roads so it will be difficult.  

 All new and existing developments should be connected by safe walking and cycling 
routes, especially important for schools and rail stations. 

 Lack of secure cycle parking at amenities across the district but particularly rail 
stations.  

 Need to consider crime prevention through environmental design.   

 

Public Transport Strategy 

Should the location and size of new development be dependent on their ability to support a 

regular, commercially viable bus service? 

 Current bus network is not convenient or comprehensive enough to encourage shift 
from cars. Bus services between settlements and rail stations need improving. 

 Current bus service model is not fit for purpose and bus services not integrated and 
coordinated with rail services. 

 Need for the provision of reliable and real time bus service information at stops.  

 New development should be well connected by rail to key employment locations such 
as Cambridge and London. 

 The location and size of new development should be dependent on their ability to 
support a regular, commercially viable bus service. 

 Funding for public transport service improvements for new developments should be 
via the developer in form of S106 or CIL. 

 Developers should pay to subsidise bus services to new developments and improve 
bus services for existing communities particular for rural services that are not 
commercially viable. 

 There needs to develop a district wide integrated public transport strategy that 
explores funding options for bus services. 

 Local community knowledge should be involved in the development of bus service 
routes and timetables. 

 Dedicated busway and bus only roads should be designed into all new large 
developments. 

 New public transport infrastructure and services need to be delivered up front whilst 
the development is built out and not afterwards.  

 New development should be focused on where transport infrastructure already exists 
rather than new infrastructure to support remote locations for new development. 

 Great Chesterford has a rail station but no car park or cycle parking facilities which 
deters usage. 

 Buses should be better designed to accommodate buggies, wheelchairs and 
bicycles. 

 Public transport should use clean fuel;  

Page 16



   
 

   
 

 Buses could run ‘on demand’ rather than timetable 

 Low cost travel is essential for young people, those out of work, low paid 

 

Technology and transport 

Should new developments make provision for these technologies? If so, what are the 

priorities for Uttlesford? 
 It is vital for new developments to provide ultrafast broadband as well as 5G – this 

needs to be considered from the start as it will be expensive to retrofit. 

 Autonomous vehicles are not likely to make a big impact in rural areas like Uttlesford.  

 Uncertainty about drones and what their impact might be.  

 There will be a need for local business hubs and workspaces for those that no longer 

required to travel into an office but home is unsuitable to work in.  

 The cost of such technologies should be considered and tested to ensure the 
delivery and wider benefits brought by development are not prejudiced and 
affordability is not impacted. 

 More people working from home will increase need for more walking and cycling 

routes for leisure activities; need for policies to support homeworking (broadband, 

workspace) 

 

Electric vehicle charging   

Should developer's install charging points in new developments now or upgrade the 

electricity grid and provide ducting to allow for chargers to be installed at parking spaces in 

the future? 

 Strong support for developers to provide electric vehicle charging in new 

developments and upgrade the grid if necessary. 

 Developers should also fund public charging stations in the local community.   

 Feeling that this is being led at national level and happening anyway.  

 There should be consideration for the installation of 3-phase power supply to houses 

rather than single phase to enable faster charging. 

 The cost and range of electric cars is still an issue and will need improving.  

 Need also to enable EV charging in housing designs where parking areas are remote 
from housing.  Planning authorities need to impose conditions to ensure charging 
points are installed. 

 There are challenges including the capacity of existing energy infrastructure and 
costs for upgrades and network reinforcement must be factored into Local Plan 
viability to ensure the delivery of new allocations. 

 EV charging provision should be linked up with solar panels on houses. 

Page 17


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 03/03/2021 Local Plan Leadership Group
	Minutes


	3 Feedback Consultation on Theme 4 - Transport
	Appendix 1: Summary of comments - Theme 4


